
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
August 13, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 23, 2013 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominium, 8 

units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), Section 4, Currently Zoned 
R-1B (One Family Residential) District 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 921-A) – Proposed Briggs Park 

Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Lamb, Section 14, Currently Zoned RT (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:15 p.m. on July 23, 2013 in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen Gordon Schepke 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-058 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Edmunds asked that the July 9, 2013 Regular meeting minutes reflect the following 
revision: 
 

Page 4, Agenda item #7, Adria Estates Site Condominium, revise the first sentence 
to read:  “Mr. Edmunds said he lives within close proximity of the proposed 
development and announced he was recusing himself from discussion and action on 
the item.” 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

Resolution # PC-2013-07-059 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 9, 2013 Regular meeting as revised. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Krent reported on the July 16, 2013 Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported the July 17, 2013 regularly scheduled Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) meeting was postponed to July 24, 2013. 

 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant gave an overview of current development activity. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 409) – Proposed Faith Lutheran Church, West side of Dequindre, North of 
Big Beaver (37635 Dequindre), Section 24, Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family 
Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the application seeking approval to add a youth center building, 
indoor recreation building and sports fields.  He addressed the proposed screening to 
mitigate the potential impact on adjacent residential.  Mr. Carlisle said a late submittal of a 
tree inventory lists only types of existing trees; not size or quality.  He said the history of 
previous proposals by the church reveals concerns from adjacent neighbors for the loss of 
wooded areas within and to the periphery of the site.  Mr. Carlisle said consideration 
should be given whether the preservation of the tree “collar” around the perimeter, or the 
installation of a wall and new trees, would better mitigate potential impact on adjacent 
neighbors.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

 
Mr. Carlisle asked the applicant to address the issues cited in his report dated July 11, 
2013 prior to the Planning Commission granting Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use 
approval. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the department received four written correspondences in general 
opposition of the proposed application.  He noted also that the petitioner submitted 
correspondence relating to the species of trees on site. 
 
There was brief discussion on: 
• Environmental protection of area. 
• Wall and landscape screening as relates to Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
The petitioner, Joseph Casiglia, and Nathan Robinson, the project engineer, were 
present.   
 
Mr. Casiglia said they propose to continue the existing style of boundary for continuity 
around the entire perimeter of the property.  Mr. Casiglia said there are a number of 
residential fences along the northern border but not one continuous fence.  He said the 
physical wall would provide protection for the users of the sports fields and adjacent 
residents. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Richard Beltz, 2422 Kingsbury, present to represent son David Beltz of 3373 Auburn 
and Mike Bobay of 3370 Auburn.  He expressed concerns with the proposed masonry 
wall being so close to the side yard configurations of the homes on Auburn.  Mr. Beltz 
circulated photographs and an alternative plan for the placement of the wall and 
landscaped screening. 
 
Kevin Geyer, 2816 Majestic Court, voiced opposition to the masonry wall; he wants to 
preserve the existing trees and vegetation. 
 
Carol Kiger, 37761 Dequindre, said the site plan does not show the wall and 
landscaping extending to her property, and asked if it should be.  She addressed 
concerns with noise. 
 
Charles Snell, 2987 Winter, asked the Board to grant approval of the plan as submitted 
this evening.   Mr. Snell said he wanted trees preserved and a landscape buffer for the 
subdivision that went in behind his property, but the parcel was clear cut for 
construction. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mike Bobay, 3370 Auburn, said the wall would have an adverse impact on his property 
value and recommended an alternate plan as suggested by Mr. Beltz. 
 
Christina Beltz, 3373 Auburn, said she would like the trees to remain because they help 
buffer sound from various church activities. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Carlisle confirmed the petitioner is required to provide and the site plan must reflect 
the extension of the screening treatment to Dequindre.  Mr. Carlisle addressed the 
differences of screening requirements for a site condominium development and a 
special use request. 
 
Mr. Robinson said the intent is to clear cut the property and place a masonry wall on the 
church side of the property line.  He addressed the existing tree types with respect to 
screening and stormwater management.  He also addressed the church’s desire for the 
wall as relates to safety and liability, particularly after the hours the sports fields would be 
used.  Mr. Robinson said sports equipment would be mobile and stored in the recreation 
building when not in use.  He said there would be no bleachers. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Type of screening treatment; wall, landscape, combination of both. 
• Effectiveness of wall, landscaping as sound barrier. 
• Location, placement of wall; i.e., offset from property line; color of wall. 
• Maintenance of area around wall if offset from property line. 
• Protection of existing trees during construction. 
• Aesthetics of area. 
 
Chair Tagle advised the petitioner that a minimum of five affirmative votes are required for 
approval and with the absence of two Board members, a postponement could be 
requested until a full board is present. 
 
Mr. Casiglia said he would like to proceed.   
 
After a brief discussion, it was the consensus of the Board to postpone the item so the 
petitioner could come back with a revised site plan to address the items as discussed.  
They specifically asked the petitioner to provide additional landscaping for screening, 
provide a sample (cut sheet) of the masonry wall, submit a full tree survey and revise the 
site plan to show the full length of the masonry wall to the Dequindre. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-060 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the September 24, 2013 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) 

– Sober Living Facilities 
 
Mr. Savidant gave an account of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  At 
the recommendation of the City Attorney, Mr. Savidant suggested to replace the word 
“constitute” with “encompass” in the definition section.  Section 2.02 DEFINITIONS to 
read:  This definition does not encompass halfway houses for those released from 
prison or a homeless situation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Schultz stated he cannot support a recommendation to City Council to amend the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance to accommodate a classification of care facility which is not 
recognized, regulated nor licensed by the State of Michigan.   
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-061 
Moved by: Kempen 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles 2, 4, 6, and 13 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes 
miscellaneous provisions related to sober living facilities, be amended as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment with the revision that the word 
“constitute” in the final sentence of Section 2.02 DEFINITIONS be replaced with the 
word “encompass”.   
 
Yes: Edmunds, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
No: Schultz 
Absent: Hutson, Schepke 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Chair Tagle called for a break at 8:28 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 8:35 p.m. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

6 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 009) 

– Proposed Troy Marriott Hotels, West side of Stephenson Highway, North of 14 Mile 
(333 Stephenson Highway), Section 35, From O (Office) District to OM (Office Mixed 
Use) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed conditional rezoning application as relates to the 
conditions offered by the applicant and the conceptual site plan submittal.  Mr. Carlisle 
stated that should the conditional rezoning be granted by City Council, the applicant is 
required to apply for Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use approval.  Mr. Carlisle said 
the proposed conditional rezoning supports the Master Plan and surrounding areas, 
provided impacts upon adjacent properties are mitigated.  
 
Andy Wakeland of Giffels Webster and Jeffrey Ryntz of Victor Saroki and Associates 
were present to represent the petitioner.  Akram Namou of A&M Hospitality was also 
present.   
 
Mr. Wakeland addressed their efforts to mitigate the potential impact to adjacent 
residential as relates to the proposed setbacks and screening.  Mr. Wakeland provided a 
sight line profile from the proposed four-story hotel to adjacent residential. 
 
Mr. Ryntz addressed the proposed building design and newer Fairfield Inn elevation.  
Mr. Ryntz also addressed the percentage of hotel windows facing adjacent residential, 
discussion with Marriott regarding frosted windows, the uses by right for the parcel as 
currently zoned, the transient and long term occupancy of each hotel, and the non-viability 
of the hotels if developed as three-story buildings. 
 
Mr. Namou addressed the upscale design improvements and lighting standards of 
Marriott Hotels.  He said the two hotels will complement each other. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following residents spoke in opposition addressing concerns with privacy, nuisance, 
screening, lighting, property values, current hotel occupancy rates and existing vacant 
buildings. 
 
• Nick Penchof, 302 Redwood. 
• James Stone, 314 Redwood. 
• Sally Wilsher, 350 Redwood, circulated pictures of light exposure in home from 

existing hotel. 
• Cindy Wilsher, 369 E Maple. 
• Kay Vavruska, 278 Redwood. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

7 
 

• Mike Davey, 325 Redwood. 
• Mary Jane Austin, 242 Redwood, circulated pictures of existing fencing with 

vegetative growth. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Namou said the proposed location is approved by Marriott and briefly addressed the 
criteria used in site selection.  Mr. Namou said an open meeting was held in good faith for 
residents within a 300 foot radius to address concerns and answer questions.  He said one 
resident attended.  Mr. Namou said they want to be good neighbors and work with the 
neighbors to mitigate concerns going forward. 
 
There was discussion on the process of a conditional rezoning application. 
 
The Board asked if the petitioner would provide additional screening details, precise 
setbacks, sight-line information and consideration to various building configurations to 
mitigate the concerns expressed by adjacent residential. 
 
The City Attorney suggested that should a recommendation to approve the application go 
forward to City Council, the Resolution should stipulate that approval is subject to 1) Site 
Plan and Special Use approval; 2) subject to the Development Agreement; and 3) list 
conditions voluntarily offered by the application. 
 
The petitioner asked to postpone the item to the August 27, 2013 Special/Study meeting, 
at which time additional detail and information would be provided per discussion tonight. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

James Stone, 314 Redwood, addressed building vacancies and vacant parcels. 
 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 

There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:53 p.m. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 23, 2013 
  
 
 

8 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 07 23 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



  PC 2013.08.13 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: August 9, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site 

 Condominium, 8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), 
 Section 4, Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 

 
The petitioner Trowbridge Companies submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for a 8-unit site condominium.  The property is currently zoned R-1B (One 
Family Residential) District.  The Planning Commission is responsible for granting Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval for site condominium applications.  
 
The Planning Commission considered this item at the June 25, 2013 Special/Study meeting and 
postponed the item “to allow the applicant time to rework the site plan based on feedback and 
comments of the Planning Department, Planning Consultant and Planning Commission”.  The 
revised site plan is a proposed cluster layout that addresses many of the issues raised at the 
meeting.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Minutes from June 25, 2013 Special/Study meeting (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo  Sec 4\PC Memo 08 13 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominium, 
8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), Section 4, Currently 
Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-08- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Cedar Pines Woods Site 
Condominium, 8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), 
Section 4, Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject 
to the following: 
 

1. Applicant shall work with City Attorney’s Office to provide documentation to 
guarantee that all open space portions of the development will be preserved and 
maintained as approved and that all commitments for such preservation and 
maintenance are binding on successors and future owners of the subject property.   

2. Applicant shall provide a tree survey one (1) year after the final certificate of 
occupancy is issued.  Any tree that was removed or died as a result of construction 
that was shown to be preserved on the approved Preservation Plan shall be 
replaced at two inches for every one inch removed.     

3. Applicant shall provide pedestrian connection via trail or path from the internal 
sidewalk to Crooks Road. 

 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo  Sec 4\Proposed Resolution 2013 08 13.doc 



Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo

1: 2,523

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2100420 420Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

4/30/2013

Legend:



Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo

1: 2,523

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2100420 420Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

4/30/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 25, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site 

Condominium, 8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), 
Section 4, Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Preliminary Site Plan application and addressed specific 
concerns relating to the landscape buffer, the road adjacent to single family homes and the 
configuration of Lots 6 and 7.  He recommended the applicant consider site arrangement 
alternatives to address the incompatibility with and negative impact upon adjacent 
properties.  Mr. Carlisle suggested options such as utilizing the cluster option, removing a 
number of lots and/or making the road private. 
 
The applicant, Bruce Michael of Trowbridge Companies, was present.  Mr. Michael 
addressed the landscape buffer, sidewalk requirements, location of road and the 
configuration of Lot 6.  He indicated that he met with four adjacent homeowners who 
responded to a flyer notifying residents of the proposed development. 
 
Vice Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
The following persons spoke in opposition of the development as proposed. 

• Daniel Pratt, 847 Benjamin 
• Don Pratt, 3031 Albany 
• Joel Pumphrey, 6616 Glendale 
• Paul Eichbrecht, 6605 Glendale 
• Paul Pitts, 6617 Glendale 
• Bob Solak, 879 Benjamin 
• Anil Sethi, 831 Benjamin 

 
The floor was closed for public comment. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Challenging site to develop. 
• Landscape buffer. 
• Street location. 
• Retention pond, capacity to share. 
• Stormwater management. 
• Cluster development option. 
• Lots 6 and 7. 
• Adverse impact on adjoining or nearby properties. 
 
Ms. Bluhm addressed approval of an application that appears to meet all Zoning 
Ordinance requirements but might not meet the intent of the Zoning Ordinance and has 
potential to negatively impact the surrounding neighbors. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 25, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

Mr. Michael requested to postpone the item so consideration can be given to developing 
the site utilizing the cluster option. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-052 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the August 13, 2013 Regular meeting to allow the 
applicant time to rework the site plan based on feedback and comments of the Planning 
Department, Planning Consultant and Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo  Sec 4\Minutes\2013 06 25 SSMeeting_Excerpt.doc 
 



 
 
  Date: June 17, 2013 
  August 8, 2013  
 
 

Preliminary Site Condominium Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 
 

 
Applicant: Bruce Michael   
 
Project Name: Cedar Pines 
 
Plan Date: July 18, 2013 
 
Location: East side of Crooks Road south of South Boulevard (to be accessed 

from west side of Merrick Drive).  
 
Zoning: R1-B, One-family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Condominium Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted. 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We are in receipt of a site condominium application which includes a Site Plan, landscape plan, 
topographic survey, tree preservation plan, and application forms.  The 4.36 acre site includes one single 
family house.   
 
The applicant is requesting approval of an eight (8) unit single family detached site condominium 
project.  Seven (7) of the lots will be accessed of a newly created single accessed Kimberly Court cul-de-
sac.  Kimberly Court will be private.  The existing house, which makes up lot 8, will maintain its access off 
Crooks Road.   
 
 



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

2 

 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
East side of Crooks Road, south of South Boulevard 
 

Location and Aerial Image of Subject Site 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 4.36 net acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Eight (8) detached, single family homes.     
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property currently has one (1) single family home which will be retained as Lot 8. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned R-1B, One-family Residential District.  
 
 
 
 

Site 



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

3 

 
Surrounding Property Details: 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  R-1B, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 
South R-1B, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 
East R-1B, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
West R-1B, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 

 

 

PRIOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed this item at their June 25, 2013 meeting.  At that meeting the 
Planning Commission expressed strong concern over the lack of consistency and compatibility with 
adjacent properties.   Specifically there was a stated concern that the Site Plan layout that creates 
negative impacts upon adjacent properties.  The Planning Commission felt that the proposed 
development does not meet the general purpose of the Zoning Ordinance or the intent of the Site 
Condominium section of the ordinance and negatively impact adjacent neighbors. In addition, there 
were a number of adjacent property owners that expressed similar concerns regarding impacts upon 
their properties and the neighborhood in general.   
 
The Planning Commission continued the matter to allow the applicant to reconfigure the site layout 
based on the Planners report and public feedback.   See the June 10th Planner’s Memo for more details.   
 

SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 
As presented as an option in the June 10th Planner’s Memo, the applicant has revised their site layout in 
the cluster option with a private road.  The cluster option is offered as an alternative to traditional 
residential development. The One-Family Cluster Option is intended to:  

1. Encourage the use of property in accordance with its natural character. 
2. Assure the permanent preservation of open space and other natural features. 
3. Provide recreational facilities and/or open space within a reasonable distance of all residents of 

the One-Family Cluster development. 
4. Allow innovation and greater flexibility in the design of residential developments. 
5. Facilitate the construction and maintenance of streets, utilities and public services in a more 

economical and efficient manner. 
6. Ensure compatibility of design and use between neighboring property. 
7. Encourage a less sprawling form of development, thus preserving open space as undeveloped 

land. 
 
The basic premise of cluster development is the preservation of open space.  At a minimum, cluster 
development is required to maintain thirty (30) percent of the gross area of the site as dedicated open 
space held in common ownership.  
 
We strongly encourage the applicant’s attempt at providing a cluster development, and find that the 
cluster provided by the applicant is a better designed project than what was proposed as a conventional 



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

4 

Lot 2 Lot 1 Lot 3 Lot 4 Lot 5 Lot 6 

Lot 7 

Lot 8 

Road, ROW, and Sidewalk 

Open Space 

Open Space 

Open Space 

subdivision.  The properties to the north, adjacent to Benjamin, are over 160-feet from the front of new 
proposed homes.  The properties that are to the south, located on Glendale, are over 90-feet from the 
rear of the new proposed homes.   The proposed cluster development provides open space in 
perpetuity, preserves a significant number of trees, and provides a significant buffer to adjacent 
properties.  The cluster design proposed is a benefit not only to the future owners of these units but also 
adjacent property owners.  

 
Items to be addressed: None 
 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS and REGULATORY FLEXABILITY 
 
The proposed site condominium consists of 8-units.  Seven (7) of the lots will be accessed of a newly 
created single accessed Kimberly Court cul-de-sac.  The existing house, which makes up lot 8, will 
maintain its access off Crooks Road.  The intent of the cluster development provisions is to relax the 
typical R-1B district bulk requirements in order encourage a less sprawling form of development.  As set 
forth in 10.05.E the applicant is able seek specific departures from the dimensional requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance for yards and units as a part of the approval process.   The table below outlines the 
bulk requirements for cluster development:  
 



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

5 

 
Items to be addressed: None        
 
OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS 
 
A requirement of the Cluster Option is to provide at least one (1) of the following open space benefits:  

A. Significant Natural Features. Preservation of significant natural features contained on the site.  
The determination of whether the site has significant natural features shall be made by the 
Planning Commission after review of a Natural Features Analysis, prepared by the applicant, that 
inventories these features.  

B. Recreation Facilities. If the site lacks significant natural features, it can qualify with the provision 
of usable recreation facilities to which all residents of the development shall have reasonable 
access.  

C. Creation of Natural Features. If the site lacks significant natural features, a proposed 
development may also qualify if the development will create significant natural features such as 
wetlands. The determination of whether the site has significant natural features shall be made 
by the Planning Commission after review of a Site Analysis Plan, prepared by the applicant, that 
inventories these features. 

 
 

  Required: Provided: Compliance: 
Density Overall density shall not exceed 

the number of residential cluster 
units as developed under a 
conventional subdivision, unless 
a density bonus has been 
granted by City Council. 

Applicant seeking 8 
units  

8 units is permitted based on 
underlying zoning 

Perimeter Setback Equal to the rear yard setback 
requirement for the underlying 
zoning district of the property 
directly adjacent to each border 
= 45 feet 

45 foot minimum  Complies  

Front Setback 
(building) 

20 foot setback +20 foot minimum Compiles 

Rear Setback (building) 25 foot setback 45 foot minimum  Complies 

Side Setback (building) 7.5 foot setback +7.5 foot minimum  Complies 

Open Space 
Requirements: 
 
Minimum Percentage  

30%  45% Complies.  Applicant must submit 
open space preservation 
covenant.    

Open Space 
Requirements: 
 
Open space depth 
adjacent to exterior 
roads  

100 feet in depth +100 feet in depth Complies. The open space along 
the exterior public roads shall be 
landscaped with a minimum of 
one (1) deciduous canopy tree (3 
to 3½ inches in diameter) for each 
ten (10) feet of road frontage. 



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

6 

The applicant proposes to preserve the trees and natural landscape along the northern and southern 
property lines, install a biorention pond, and provide evergreen screening along the northern side of the 
road.   
 
 

 
The applicant has submitted a preliminary tree preservation plan, which shows which trees are to be 
removed and which are to be preserved as part of site development.  The preservation area follows the 
building envelope and grading limit line.  The July 15th submittal includes a tree inventory with size and 
species.  Quality is not indicated.  We have asked the applicant to provide additional information 
including narrative regarding quality of areas being preserved at the Planning Commission meeting.   The 
Planning Commission shall determine if the provided natural features meets the preservation of natural 
features requirement as required in cluster development.   
 
Guarantee of Open Space and Tree Preservation:  
 
The applicant shall provide documentation to guarantee that all open space portions of the 
development will be preserved and maintained as approved and that all commitments for such 
preservation and maintenance are binding on successors and future owners of the subject property.  All 
such documents shall be subject to approval by the City Attorney. No structures (pools, sheds) or 
equipment (play structures, etc) are permitted within the dedicated open space area.   
 
The preservation of the existing natural area as shown on the Preservation Plan will be part of Site Plan 
approval.  However, it is likely that during site construction and changes in site drainage as a result of 
development, some trees not indicated on the Tree Protection Preservation Plan will be lost.   We 
recommended that as a condition of approval, the applicant provide a complete tree survey one (1) year 
after the final certificate of occupancy is issued.  Any tree that was removed or died as a result of 
construction that was shown to be preserved on the approved Preservation Plan shall be replaced at 
two inches for every one inch removed.     
 
Items to be addressed: Tree survey to be completed one (1) year after the final certificate of occupancy 
is issued.  Any tree that was removed or died as a result of construction that was shown to be preserved 
on the approved Preservation Plan shall be replaced at two inches for every one inch removed.     
 
 

Tree 
Preservation  
 
Evergreen 
Screening 
 
Bio Retention 
Pond  
 



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

7 

SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular 
 
Access to the site will be from Merrick Drive with a 600 foot long cul-de-sac.  Kimberly Court will be 
private. 
 
Pedestrian  
 
A five (5) foot sidewalk will be provided on the southern side of Kimberly Court.  Based on the current 
site arrangement the provision of a sidewalk along the north side of the Kimberly Court is not advisable 
due to landscape screening.  The applicant has 
shown a sidewalk along Merrick Drive.  To 
connect Kimberly Court to Crooks Road, a 
pedestrian connection via trail or path should 
be provided from internal sidewalk to Crooks 
Road.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Items to be Addressed:  Provide pedestrian 
connection via trail or path from the internal sidewalk Crooks Road.  
 
STORMWATER 

 
In addition to the onsite bioretention pond, the applicant proposes to expand the existing retention 
pond in the Cedar Pines Estates (northern side of proposed Kimberly Court.  The detention pond 
expansion is close to the southern property line.   The City Engineer notes that additional details need to 
be provided to determine if detention pond expansion is possible.  If detention pond expansion is not 
possible, stormwater will be maintained on site and thus site arrangement will be affected.   In addition, 
the applicant will need to work with Engineering regarding rear yard drainage.  Engineering will be 
approved as part of final Site Plan approval.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
LANDSCAPING 

 
Site condominium and subdivision landscaping are regulated by Section 13.02.F.2. 
 
 Required Provided Compliance 
Crooks Road Frontage One large evergreen tree for 

every 50 lineal feet.  210 
Feet = 4 trees 

9 trees (5 new, 4 
existing) 

Complies 

Provide 
pedestrian 
connection from 
internal 
sidewalk to 
Crooks Road  



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

8 

Merrick Drive Frontage One tree for every 50 lineal 
feet.  210 Feet = 4 trees 

8 trees (1 new, 7 
existing) 

Complies 

Kimberly Court Frontage  One tree for every 50 lineal 
feet. 1250 feet  = 25 trees 

45 new trees Complies   

 
Site condominium landscaping requirements have been met.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None.   
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
Section 10.02.C requires that all site condominium projects shall comply with the standards and 
procedures set forth in Article 8, Site Plan Review and several unique standards.  The only standard for 
the preliminary plan is that the street pattern and fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including 
proposed building configurations, as well as preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main 
layout must also be submitted.  This submittal includes all the required information. 
 
Section 10.02.E. regulates physical improvements associated with condominium projects.  It requires the 
following:  
 
1. Principal access and circulation through a site condominium shall be provided by public streets 
constructed to City standards, within sixty (60) foot wide rights-of-way. Secondary access and circulation 
through such developments, on which some of the residential parcels may have their sole frontage, may 
be provided by twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within 
forty (40) foot private easements for public access. 40-foot private road has been satisfied. 
 
2. Principal access to site condominium of five (5) acres or less in area may be provided by way of 
twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within forty (40) foot 
private easements for public access, when in the opinion of the City Council the property configuration is 
such that the provision of conforming dwelling unit parcels is impractical. Satisfied 
 
3. All entrances to major or secondary thoroughfares shall include deceleration, acceleration and passing 
lanes as required by Engineering Standards of the City of Troy. Not applicable. 
 
4. Sidewalks shall be constructed, in accordance with City Standards, across the frontage of all dwelling 
unit parcels. Utilities shall be placed within street rights-of-way, or within easements approved as to size 
and location by the City Engineer. Path or trail should be provided to Crooks Road.  
 
5. All shall be served by public water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and detention/retention systems 
constructed to City standards, at the expense of the developer. Easements over these systems shall be 
conveyed and recorded before occupancy permits are issued for dwelling units. Satisfied. 
 
 
As noted above, all condominium projects are subject to Section 8.05.A.7, which establishes the 
requirements for a preliminary site plan submittal, which is required under the site condominium 
regulations.  Three additional requirements are specifically identified for residential projects. The three 
additional requirements, identified in 8.05.A.7.o, include: 



Cedar Pines 
August 8, 2013 

9 

 
i. Calculation of the dwelling unit density allowable and a statement of the number of dwelling units, by 
type, to be provided. Satisfied.  
 
ii. Topography on site and fifty (50) feet beyond, drawn at two (2) foot contour intervals, with existing 
drainage courses, flood plains, wetlands, and tree stands indicated. Satisfied. 
 
iii. The typical floor plans and elevations of the proposed buildings, with building height(s). Satisfied. 
 
Items to be Addressed:   None 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
We find that the cluster provided by the applicant is a better designed project than what was proposed 
as a conventional subdivision.  We recommend preliminary Site Plan approval with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Applicant shall work with City Attorney’s Office to provide documentation to guarantee that all 
open space portions of the development will be preserved and maintained as approved and that 
all commitments for such preservation and maintenance are binding on successors and future 
owners of the subject property.   

2. Applicant shall provide a tree survey one (1) year after the final certificate of occupancy is 
issued.  Any tree that was removed or died as a result of construction that was shown to be 
preserved on the approved Preservation Plan shall be replaced at two inches for every one inch 
removed.     

3. Applicant shall provide pedestrian connection via trail or path from the internal sidewalk to 
Crooks Road. 

 
 
 

 
cc:  
 































  PC 2013.08.13 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
DATE: August 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 921-A) – Proposed Briggs 

 Park Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Lamb, Section 14, Currently 
 Zoned RT (One Family Attached Residential) District 

 
 
 
The petitioner APR Development, LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for a 4 additional residential units within the Briggs Park Condominium 
development.  The original Briggs Park development was approved by the Planning 
Commission in 2005.  The development was approved for a total of 54 units within 16 buildings.  
To date 4 buildings (15 units) have been built and 3 buildings (7 units) are under construction. 
 
The Planning Commission is responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this 
item. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 921 A  Briggs Park Condominiums  Sec 14\SP-921A PC Memo 08 13 2013.docx 



PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 921-A) – Proposed Briggs Park 
Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Lamb, Section 14, Currently  Zoned RT 
(One Family Attached Residential) District 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-08- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Briggs Park Condominium, located on the east 
side of Rochester, north of Lamb, Section 14, within the RT (One Family Attached) district, 
be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Maintain Building 9 as three (3) unit building rather than the proposed four (4) unit 
building.  

2. Provide maximum lot area covered by buildings calculation. 
3. Place sidewalks within an access easement.   
4. Add additional evergreen landscaping along Rochester Road, specifically adjacent 

to Building 11. 
 

 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 921 A  Briggs Park Condominiums  Sec 14\Proposed PC Resolution 08 13 2013.doc 



BRIGGS PARK CONDO'S, SP 921-A

1: 3,154

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2630526 526Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

6/21/2013

Legend:



BRIGGS PARK CONDO'S, SP 921-A

1: 3,154

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2630526 526Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

6/21/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

 
 

 
 Date: August 8, 2013  
 
 

Preliminary Site Condominium Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 
 

 
Applicant: Bruce Michael   
 
Project Name: Briggs Park 
 
Plan Date: June 11, 2013 
 
Location: East side of Rochester Road, north of Lamb Road. 
 
Zoning: RT, One-family Attached Residential 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Condominium Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted. 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We are in receipt of a site condominium application which includes architectural drawings, existing 
conditions plan, general site plan, grading / utility plan, landscape plan, and application forms.  Briggs 
Park received Preliminary Site Plan Approval from the Planning Commission on December 13, 2005. Final 
Site Plan Approval was granted administratively on September 28, 2006. The approved layout for the 12 
acre site included 54 attached condominium units within 16 buildings, comprised of a combination of 3-
unit and 4-unit buildings. To date, 4 buildings (15 units) have been built and 3 buildings (7 units) are 
under construction.   
 
On May 24, 2011 the Planning Commission held a Special/Study meeting to provide feedback on a 
potential revision to the development which would replace 42 proposed attached units (in 12 buildings)  
 
 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

2 
 

with 35 unattached units. Ultimately the applicant did not seek a Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this 
redesign. 
 
The applicant is currently requesting approval to convert four (4) 3-unit buildings into 4-unit buildings, 
as shown in Table 1.  The total number of units proposed would be increased from 54 units as approved 
in 2006 to 58 units.  All units will be accessed off existing private streets (Navin Field Lane and Bennett 
Park Circle).   
 
Location of Subject Property: 
East side of Rochester Road, north side of Lamb, Section 14 
 

Location and Aerial Image of Subject Site 
 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel 12.12  acres in area. 
 
 
 

SITE 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

3 
 

Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Addition of four (4) attached single family condominium units, to be achieved by converting Building 5, 
Building 6, Building 9, and Building 16 from 3-unit to 4-unit buildings.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property currently has four (4) completed buildings with 15 condominium units, and three 
(3) buildings with 7 more condominium units under construction. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned RT, One-family Attached Residential. The northeast section of 
property is zoned EP, Environmental Protection. 
 
Surrounding Property Details: 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  RT, One-family Attached Residential District Single-family homes 
South R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
East R-1C, One-family Residential District 

EP, Environmental Protection District 
Single-family homes 
Detention pond 

West R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
City parkland 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

4 
 

SITE ARRANGEMENT 

 
 

Proposed Change in Number of Condominium Units By Building 
Building # 

 
Approved  Units 12/13/2013 Proposed Units 6/17/2013 Status 

1 4 4 Built 

2 4 4 Built 

3 3 3 Not Built 

4 4 4 Not Built 

5 3 4 Not Built 

6 3 4 Not Built 

7 3 3 Not Built  

8 4 4 Not Built  

9 3 4 Not Built  

10 3 3 Not Built  

11 3 3 Under construction 

12 3 3 Under construction 

13 4 4 Built 

14 3 3 Built 

15 4 4 Under construction 

16 3 4 Not Built  

Total Units 54 58 

 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

5 
 

 
Briggs Park is location on the Northeast side of the Rochester Road and Lamb Road intersection. The 
streets, utilities and sewer were installed as part of the initial site approval.   Navin Field Lane runs NW-
SE and provides access off of Rochester Road and Lamb Road.   Bennett Park Circle is a secondary L-
shaped internal street. Internal streets are 28’ wide except at the entrance off of Rochester Road where 
it is 36’ wide. Each unit has a driveway to a 2-car garage. There are two detentions ponds in the 
Northeast section of the property. A foot path running between the detention ponds provides a 
pedestrian connection from Robertson Drive to the site.  
 
The owner occupied attached residential condominiums 
are arranged in 3-unit and 4-unit buildings. Buildings 
consist of four different unit types (A, B, C, D). The 
proposed plan calls for six (6) 3-unit and ten (10) 4-unit 
buildings, for a total of 58 residential units.  
 
The conversion of Building 9 from a three (3) unit building 
to a four (4) unit building creates a congestion and 
circulation problem due to the number of driveways in 
close proximity.  The applicant should maintain Building 9 
as a three (3) unit building.   
 
 
 
Items to be addressed:  Maintain Building 9 as three (3) unit building.   
 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
Table 4.07 establishes the requirements for the RT District. The requirements and the proposed 
dimensions are as follows: 
 

  Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Front 25 foot setback + 25 foot setbacks Complies 

Rear 35 foot setback + 35 foot setbacks Complies 

Side 10 foot minimum for least 
side setback, 20 foot 
minimum combined setback 

+ 10 foot setbacks Complies 

Lot Size per Unit 5,000 square feet (for projects 
with sewer) 

Averages 9,000 square feet 
lot area per unit 
 

Complies 

Maximum Height 30 feet, 2.5 story Height is less than 30 feet Complies 

Lot Width 100 feet Exceeds minimum Complies 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

6 
 

 
Applicant should provide the maximum lot area covered by building calculation to confirm that 30% 
requirement is not exceeded.  
 
Items to be addressed:  Provide maximum lot area covered by buildings calculation. 
  
NATURAL RESOURCES 

  
The site has been mass graded for approved development.  Natural resources will not be altered as 
result of any additional units.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None  
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 

 
Vehicular 
Navin Field Lane and Bennett Park Circle are existing private roads and will provide access to proposed 
building.  
 
Pedestrian  
A five (5) foot sidewalk will be provided on both sides Navin Field Lane and Bennett Park Circle. This will 
provide a continuous sidewalk network internally, and connect to the sidewalk along Lamb Road.   As 
part of the final site approval the sidewalks shall be placed within an access easement.  There is a 
proposed HWA pathway connecting the sidewalks along Robertson Drive between Building 3 and 4 to 
the sidewalk along the northside of Navin Field Lane. The pathway continues across the street, between 
Buildings 15 and 16, and connects to the sidewalk along the northside of Bennett Park Circle.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  As part of the final site approval the sidewalks shall be placed within an access 
easement.   

 
STORMWATER 

 
The applicant indicates that all site utilities including stormwater are already in place. Applicant will 
need to confirm that increase in building lot coverage does not affect stormwater management.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Maximum Lot Area 
Covered by Buildings 

30 percent Not provided. Insufficient 
information 

Minimum Floor Area 
per Unit 

1,400 square feet + 4,000 square feet Complies 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

7 
 

LANDSCAPING 
 
Site condominium and subdivision landscaping are regulated by Section 13.02.F.2. 
 
Street Required Provided Compliance 
Rochester Road Frontage 
 
 

One deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet. 
850 feet = 29 trees 

29 trees (5 new, 24 
existing) 

Complies 

One evergreen tree per 10 
lineal feet. 
850 feet = 85 trees 

44 trees (5 new, 39 
existing) 
 

Does not comply.  
Planning 
Commission may 
grant relief.   

Lamb Road Frontage One deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet. 
686 feet = 23 trees 
 

28 trees (9 new, 19 
existing) 

Complies 

Navin Field Lane One tree for every 50 lineal 
feet.  1,050 feet = 21 trees 
 

32 trees  within ROW  
 

Complies 

Bennett Park Circle One tree for every 50 lineal 
feet.  850 feet = 17  trees 
 

27 trees  within ROW  Complies 

 
The site condominium abuts Rochester Road, which is a one hundred and twenty (120) foot public ROW; 
therefore, the alternative number 2 screening requirements set forth in Section 13.02 B, Screening 
Between Land Uses must be applied.  Screening Alternative 2 requires one (1) evergreen tree per ten 
(10) lineal feet in combination with the one (1) deciduous tree per 30 feet.   
 
The applicant has provided a screen wall along Rochester Road.  The Planning Commission may approve 
the use of a wall in combination of landscaping, if the Planning Commission finds that such combination 
provides more effective screening.  We find that the existing wall in combination with the landscaping 
provides an effective screen.  However, there are sections along Rochester Road, specifically adjacent to 
Building 11, where additional evergreen plantings should be provided.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Add additional evergreen landscaping along Rochester Road, specifically 
adjacent to Building 11.   
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
Section 10.02.C requires that all site condominium projects shall comply with the standards and 
procedures set forth in Article 8, Site Plan Review and several unique standards.  The only standard for 
the preliminary plan is that the street pattern and fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including 
proposed building configurations, as well as preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main 
layout must also be submitted.  This submittal includes all the required information. 
 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

8 
 

Section 10.02.E. regulates physical improvements associated with condominium projects.  It requires the 
following:  
 
1. Principal access and circulation through a site condominium shall be provided by public streets 
constructed to City standards, within sixty (60) foot wide rights-of-way. Secondary access and circulation 
through such developments, on which some of the residential parcels may have their sole frontage, may 
be provided by twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within 
forty (40) foot private easements for public access. 40-foot private road has been satisfied. 
 
2. Principal access to site condominium of five (5) acres or less in area may be provided by way of 
twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within forty (40) foot 
private easements for public access, when in the opinion of the City Council the property configuration is 
such that the provision of conforming dwelling unit parcels is impractical. Satisfied 
 
3. All entrances to major or secondary thoroughfares shall include deceleration, acceleration and passing 
lanes as required by Engineering Standards of the City of Troy. Not applicable. 
 
4. Sidewalks shall be constructed, in accordance with City Standards, across the frontage of all dwelling 
unit parcels. Utilities shall be placed within street rights-of-way, or within easements approved as to size 
and location by the City Engineer. Sidewalk will need to be placed within easement for final site plan 
approval. 
 
5. All shall be served by public water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and detention/retention systems 
constructed to City standards, at the expense of the developer. Easements over these systems shall be 
conveyed and recorded before occupancy permits are issued for dwelling units. Satisfied. 
 
 
As noted above, all condominium projects are subject to Section 8.05.A.7, which establishes the 
requirements for a preliminary site plan submittal, which is required under the site condominium 
regulations.  Three additional requirements are specifically identified for residential projects. The three 
additional requirements, identified in 8.05.A.7.o, include: 
 
i. Calculation of the dwelling unit density allowable and a statement of the number of dwelling units, by 
type, to be provided. Satisfied.  
 
ii. Topography on site and fifty (50) feet beyond, drawn at two (2) foot contour intervals, with existing 
drainage courses, flood plains, wetlands, and tree stands indicated. Satisfied. 
 
iii. The typical floor plans and elevations of the proposed buildings, with building height(s). Satisfied. 
 
Items to be Addressed:    
 
 
 
 
 
 



Briggs Park Condominiums 
August 8, 2013 

9 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
We recommend approval of the preliminary site plan conditioned upon satisfactorily addressing 
the following items for the final site plan submittal: 
 

1. Maintain Building 9 as three (3) unit building rather than the proposed four (4) unit building.  
2. Provide maximum lot area covered by buildings calculation. 
3. Place sidewalks within an access easement.   
4. Add additional evergreen landscaping along Rochester Road, specifically adjacent to 

Building 11.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
# 225-02-1315 
 
cc:  
 












	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	July 23, 2013 Special/Study Meeting

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominium
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	June 25, 2013 Minutes Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan Submittal

	6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 921-A)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan Submittal

	7. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS

